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Families who arrived in Philadelphia from Puerto
Rico in the late 1940s and early 1950s met a
“Latino Philadelphia” that was much different from
the “Latino Philadelphia” of today. With limited
resources, they began to create distinct
communities, and many are still active in these
communities today. 

Tomasita Romero moved to Philadelphia in 1948
immediately after finishing school. Her father had
died a year earlier, leaving behind Tomasita’s mother
and five children, and Tomasita migrated so that she
could help support her family. After her first year in
Philadelphia, she married, started a family, and
eventually settled in the Norris Square
neighborhood. Señora Romero spent 22 years
working in a garment factory, sewing by hand, but
eventually became a bilingual teacher’s aid. She is
now a leader in the Norris Square Neighborhood
Project’s women’s organization, Grupo Motivos. A
pillar of Norris Square, she works to improve
conditions in this challenged community. 
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Tomasita Romero in the Las Parcelas garden. Photograph by Tony
Rocco. 

Flor Negrón and his oldest sons, Flor and Natividad,
came from Maunabo, Puerto Rico, to work in the
United States in the early 1950s. They labored in
factories and on farms between Maine and Chicago
before finding stable work in The Bucks Hotel in Bucks
County. In 1959, Catalina Román Negrón arrived in
Philadelphia with the rest of their children. They first
settled in South Philadelphia, but eventually moved to
5th and Lehigh, where the family became active in
community development over the next decades. 
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republished these findings and added
to misconceptions and general-
izations with language such as: “Like
all other people of Latin America,
Puerto Ricans are noisy and express
themselves freely, in an unrestricted
manner when they are in the
presence of other Puerto Ricans or
Spanish-speaking people.”17

At first, problems were addressed by
agencies outside the community.
Organizations like the Friends
Neighborhood Guild, the International
Institute (now the Nationalities Service
Center), Hahnemann Hospital, and the
YWCA aimed to promote the

community’s “adjustment” and “assimilation.”  The
Friends Neighborhood Guild hosted the Spanish
American Circle, a social club, and the first
Spanish-speaking Boy Scout troop in Pennsylvania.
Casa del Carmen was founded in 1954 by the
Archdiocese under the initiative of an Argentinean-
born doctor who saw the great need for Spanish-
speaking health care. Located in the Spring Garden
area at 7th and Jefferson Streets, it strove to meet
the needs of the Puerto Rican community, and
offered health services, job referrals, recreation,
and education. Churches such as the Spanish
Baptist Church and La Milagrosa also played an
important role in the lives of recent arrivals, offering
clothing and food assistance. 

Community Development
Meanwhile, the community began forming its own
organizations in order to address its problems as it
defined them. At first, these organizations were
often part of the larger pan-Latino Spanish-
speaking community and consisted primarily of
fraternal associations and social clubs offering
mutual assistance. Some of these early groups
included: Comité de Mujeres Puertorriqueñas de
Filadelfia (2056 North Franklin Street), Unión
Cívica Puertorriqueña (540 West Oxford Street),

Logia Hispana
Fidelidad, (7th and
Pine Streets), Club
Caribe (1229 North

Luis and Naomi Alvarez and their children arrived
in Philadelphia from Santurce, Puerto Rico, in
January of 1951. The family had been business
owners in Puerto Rico, and by 1953 they had
managed to open a bodega, or corner grocery
store, on South 8th Street near Lombard. The
presence of the Bodega Alvarez El Tropical
reflected the
substantial
number of
Puerto Ricans
who lived in that
neighborhood
at the time. The
Alvarez bodega
remained in
operation until
1984.
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Luis Antonio Alvarez and
his Aunt Melly, Bodega
Alvarez El Tropical,
1959. Courtesy of the
Alvarez Family.


